PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
References to the Record on Appeal shall be made by use of the
symbol "R". The Appendix accompanying this brief shall be made by

use of the symbol "A".

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

A complete understanding of the factual setting of this cause
is absolutely essential to framing the proper question to be
considered and answered by this Court. The "facts," as they appear
in the opinion of the lower court® are set forth below. The
petitioner does not accept the facts as presented by the lower
court as entirely accurate and areas of disagreement are
specifically noted. In addition, a recitation of the evidence
proving business damages, omitted by the majority opinion, has been
included in order to insure this Court that substantial, competent

evidence supporting the verdict is contained in the record below.

Icity of Tallahassee v. Boyd, 616 So. 2d 1000 (Fla. lst DCA
1993) (A: 1-12)
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EXCERPTS OF COURT OPINTON
This case originated as an eminent domain action
wherein the City condemned certain real property as part
of the widening of Ocala Road. Parcel 142 is a 14-foot
wide, 176-foot long strip of land bordering the Ocala

Road right-of-way. Weaver O0il leased the parent

property, from which Parcel 142 was taken, and operated

a gas station/convenience store doing business as Hoqly

Wogly. The property is located at the southeastern
corner of Ocala Road and Tennessee Street. The City’s
Ocala Road project and related construction resulted in
the following: 1) Parcel 142 was taken, allowing the
widening of Ocala Road and the right-of-way. 2) The
Ocala Road entrance to the Weaver 0il leasehold was
widened from about 72 feet to 91 feet. 3) A utility
pole was relocated and a portion of the curb and grass
traffic control island at the southeastern corner of
Ocala Road and Tennessee Street was reconstructed on
existing public right-of-way, not on the land acquired by
condemnation. 4) The reconstruction of the traffic
control island caused that portion of public right-of-way
available for Weaver 0il’s use, as the westerly of two
Tennessee Street entrances, to be reduced from 44 feet to
27 feet at its narrowest point, although greater width

was maintained a the mouth of the entrance. The easterly
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entrance on Tennessee Street was undisturbed. (Emphasis

Supplied)

The lower court incompletely describes the reconstruction
occurring as part of the Ocala Road Project, when it states that "a
portion of the curb and grass traffic control island at the
southeastern corner of Ocala Road and Tennessee Street was
reconstructed on existing public right of way, not on land acquired
by condemnation." The record clearly establishes that the
fourteen foot strip of land acquired along Ocala Road extended from
the southern property 1line up to Tennessee Street. This
effectively took fourteen feet of Tennessee Street frontage.
(R:309-315) (Stipulated Partial Final Judgment, Exhibit A reflecting
area taken); (R:1036) On that strip taken by the City, including
the fourteen feet of frontage on Tennessee Street, the grass curbed
island was reconstructed and then included a "bullnose." The
island was constructed, in large part, in the area of the fourteen
feet of Tennessee Street frontage lost as a result of the taking of
Parcel 142, encroaching also into the opening of the pre-existing
driveway. This fact is graphically demonstrated by two diagrams
included in the brief submitted by the City in the lower court.
(See Initial Brief of Appellant, City of Tallahassee, pp.5 & 6).
These diagrams are included on the following pages for the Court’s
convenience. The diagram labeled "Before Project" reflects the
strip taken in yellow. The property line abutting Tennessee Street
is shown in red. The grass island existing at the time of taking

is outlined by a heavy black line and that portion previously owned
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and used by Weaver 0Oil is highlighted in pink. As is apparent from
the "Before Project" diagram and Defendants Exhibit 1, the west
fourteen feet of its Tennessee Street frontage was being used by
Weaver 0il, prior to the taking, as a grass island, which served to
accommodate entering and existing vehicles, by separating Weaver
0il’s western Tennessee Street driveway and Ocala Road. The
diagram labeled "After Project" reflects some of the strip taken in
yellow. The new curb and grass island, as reconstructed on the
part taken, is highlighted in pink. As reflected in the diagrams,
the new curb and grass island is indeed constructed on the part
taken. The structure then continues around the corner encroaching
into the westerly driveway. (R: 438-439; 1069-1071).

As i1s apparent from the "After Project" diagram, the Tennessee
Street frontage taken by the City is being used by the City for new
paved roadway (see area highlighted in yellow) as well as for a
portion of the new curbed and grassed island. The new island
serves as a replacement for the island that existed prior to the
taking. The preexisting island was effectively moved to the east,
using the 14 feet of Tennessee Street frontage taken by the City as

part of the widening of Ocala Road (R: 1070).
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Prior to the trial, the City entered into a
Stipulated Partial Final Judgment with the fee title
owner and Weaver 0il, whereunder the City agreed to pay
$77,300 "in full payment for the property (designated
Parcel Nos. 142, 742 herein) taken and for all other
damages of any nature, with the exception of statutory
business damages and attorney’s fees and costs." Parcel
742 was a temporary construction easement. That
aqreement was approved by the trial court on February 1,
1991, and recognized that the sole unresolved issue was
statutory business damages claimed by Weaver 0il pursuant
to section 73.071(3)(b), Florida Statutes (1989).

| Throughout the proceedings below, Weaver O0il
asserted its entitlement to business damages as a result
of an alleged loss of access caused by the narrowed
westerly Tennessee Street entrance. There was testimony
that the westerly entrance was the main entrance. The
City contended that business damages were not recoverable
for a loss of access unless that loss was attributable to

the loss of use of the physical property condemned,

Parcel 142, and that alleged damages resulting from the
reconstruction of the traffic control island were not
recoverable because the construction occurred on existing
right-of-way. (Emphasis Supplied)

It was undisputed that the westerly driveway, into which the

reconstructed curb and grass area protruded, was the main entrance
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to the property and that almost everyone entered the property

through that driveway. (R:429-430; 551; 1035)

EXCERPT CONTINUED

The City objected to the requested jury instructions
and proposed verdict of Weaver 0il and requested its own,
based on the language in section 73.071(3)(b). Over the
City’s objections, the trial court used Weaver 0il’s
proposed verdict form and granted an instruction that
Weaver 0il was entitled to be compensated for claimed
business damages resulting from the alleged loss of
access caused by the narrowing of the westerly Tennessee
Street entrance, without the requirement that the loss
result from the denial of the use of the physical
property so taken. (Emphasis Supplied)

At the conclusion of Weaver 0il‘’s case-in-chief, the
City moved for a directed verdict, which was denied. At
the conclusion of the trial, the City renewed its motion
for a directed verdict and alternatively moved for
judgment non obstante veredicto, which motions were
denied. The jury returned a verdict finding business
damages of $94,000 and judgment was entered on that

verdict.
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TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE PRESENTED
BY THE OWNER ON BUSTNESS DAMAGES

As its first witness the owner called a professional engineer,
Nevins Smith, Jr. (R:412). The witness stated that the western
entrance on Tennessee Street was the most important entrance to the
property and almost everyone entered the property through that
entrance. (R:429-430). With regard to the business site, the
witness described the business as a high volume fuel dispensing
store, as compared to a neighborhood food or convenience store.
(R:428). It was stated further that the location and design of the
store and the design of the entrances were all oriented to the sale
of gasoline. (R:429).

A wide access point as its main entrance was critical to the
operation of a high volume fuel store, according to Mr. Smith.
(R:439). He stated that he was familiar with the 15 other fuel
dispensing stores along Tennessee Street, all of which had a main
entrance driveway which was greater than 40 feet in width. (R:433~
434). It is generally recognized that such fuel stores require an
entrance of 40 to 45 feet and under the current City Code driveways
up to 45 feet are permitted for fuel oriented stores. (R:436).

Mr. Smith testified that prior to the City’s activities the
main driveway entrance on Tennessee Street was 44 feet in width.
(R:438). However, as part of the project for the widening of Ocala
Road, a 14 foot wide strip of land was taken along the western and
northern most boundaries of the property. The widening and
reconstruction of Ocala Road also resulted in the construction of
a "bull nose" which extended into the area immediately adjacent to

9
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the owner’s main driveway on Tennessee Street. This narrowed the
width of the driveway from 44 feet to 27 feet, making the entrance
way substandard for a high volume fuel oriented business. (R:439).

The expert testified that based upon his experience as a site
planner and designer, it was his opinion that there had been a
substantial loss of access to the property, considering its use as
a high volume fuel retailing store (R:440), and that the remaining
access was no longer suitable for this use. (R:440-441).

The next witness called was James Davis, Jr. (R:485), who was
an owner/operator of twenty (20) high volume petroleum marketing
locations. (R:486). Mr. Davis managed these businesses on a day to
day basis and as part of the business operation was involved in
site selection, land purchases, and the design of the driveways,
pump islands and the store to be constructed at a particular
location. (R:486). The witness also expressed an expertise with
regard to neighborhood convenience stores. (R:488).

Mr. Davis was familiar with the subject location, and at one
time hoped to purchase the site. (R:493-494). One thing in
particular that made him interested in the site was the main
entrance off of Tennessee Street. (R:495). However, after being
made aware of the changes to the driveway caused by the
reconstruction of the road, he was glad that he did not purchase
the location. (R:513; 517).

With regard to a high volume fuel marketing site, it is very

important to have a wide driveway entrance. (R:503). Of the 20

10
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high volume sites he owned, the witness testified that all have
driveways ranging from 40 to 60 feet in width. (R:499).

Due to the difficulty the customers would experience getting
into the main entrance, the witness stated that, in his opinion,
customers would begin going to other locations. (R:515-516; 535).
The witness stated that there were no new stores competing with the
subject site that would have drawn customers away (R:515-516), and
he could identify no other cause for the losses suffered by the
site other than the change in access. (R:535). Based upon his
experience as an owner/operator of this type of business, it was
the witness’ expert opinion that the access remaining was no longer
suitable for the operation of the business. (R:518~519).

Scott McWilliams, a business analyst and market researcher
was the next witness called by the owner. (R:537) The witness
stated that he was retained to analyze potential business damages
(R¢542), and in doing so he looked at customer counts, did a
neighborhood analysis, and an industry review. (R:545-546). The
witness also considered his experience in a similar case in which
he was retained by the Department of Transportation to analyze the
impact of reducing a driveway to 20 feet in width. (R:547).

McWilliams stated that the site had a "classic" high volume
gasoline design which allowed easy access to the adjacent roadways
(R:548), with the primary entrance, for 3 out of 4 cars, being the
western driveway off of Tennessee Street. (R:551). The primary

driveway was similar to other high volume gasoline marketing stores

11
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which, in almost all cases, would have an entrance of at least 40
feet in width. (R:552).

McWilliams distinguished this type of operation from a local
convenience food store. The witness noted that not only is there
a difference in the design of such stores (R:550-551), but the
source of their customers was distinct. The neighborhood
convenience store drew its customers locally, with the emphasis on
food sales and walk-~in customers. (R:549-550; 552-554). The high
volume gasoline retailers focus on drive-in customers, placing
emphasis on the sale of gasoline. (R:549-550). With gasoline
retailers the design was oriented to providing easy access to the
pump islands and a greater capacity to deliver fuel to the
automobiles. (R:550-551). The presence, at this location, of 20
pump hoses available for the delivery of gasoline was indicative of
a high volume gasoline sales operation. (R:548).

After defining the primary service area for the store, which
was approximately a mile in diameter (Defendant’s Exhibit 5;
R:559), the witness discussed a customer count study he conducted
for fiscal years 1988 through 1990. (R:574). The customer
comparison count was performed on a month to month basis to
eliminate any seasonal variations. (R:576). The study compared the
average customer counts before road construction began and after
the roadway reconstruction (R:576), and indicated an annual loss of
73,945 customers for the year after completion of the construction.

(R:576; 579).

12
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McWilliams stated that he began to look for the cause that
resulted in the loss of customers. The witness found no change in
competition, no change in pricing strategy used by the business,
and no end to a promotional campaign by the business or the
beginning of such a campaign by a competitor. (R:580-581). After
examining the "market variables" that could bring about such a
customer loss, the only factor that coincided with the decline in
customers was the reconstruction of the road and the changes to the
site resulting from the project. (R:580-581).

The decline in customers began with the construction of the
project. (R:580). While they expected the customer counts to go
back up after construction was completed, that did not occur.
(R:581). The analysis revealed that the customer level and trend
for the "after situation" had stabilized at the lower levels and
had shown no indication that it would increase. (R:582-583). With
the stabilization of the pattern of customers after construction
has been completed, and finding nothing to indicate that the
damaging influence would be removed, it was reasonable to expect
that the damage (a loss of 200 customers per day) would continue.
(R:604-605).

McWilliams concluded that, based upon his experience and
evaluation in cases similar to this, the causative factor that
remained after construction was completed was the fact that the
main entrance, by which 3 out of 4 customers entered the property,

had been narrowed to an unacceptable width. This narrowing

13
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affected the impulse customers that previously had access to the
property at that entrance. (R:581-582).

Based upon his marketing experience, and other work for the
Department of Transportation in similar situations, it was the
witness’ expert opinion that the access remaining to this location
was no longer suitable. (R:583-584).

The next witness called by the owners was Fred Thompson, a
certified public accountant. (R:616). The expert was retained to
prepare an analysis and appraisal of business damages and was
requested to conduct the analysis in the same manner as he had for
the Department of Transportation in other similar cases. (R:624).

Mr. Thompson first accumulated financial data from the
location, including tax returns. He considered data regarding
customer counts and the number of gallons of gasoline sold at the
site. He also interviewed a number of people with expertise
regarding the operation of this type of business (R:625-626), and
consulted various experts when preparing an analysis of causation.
(R:627).

Thompson’s study revealed that in 1989, when the road
reconstruction began, several things occurred: a decline in sales,
in the number of gallons sold, and in the number of customers
visiting the site. (R:647-648). After construction was completed
in 1990 it was expected that things would return to the same
operating level as existed in the "before" situation. However,
that did not occur and customer counts and the number of gallons

sold continued to decline. (R:648-649).

14
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Using Defendant’s Exhibit 12 (Weaver 0il Co. Analysis) the
expert explained the history of the business, including what
happened to the business as a result of the roadway reconstruction.
(R:632-650; 655). The expert also prepared a business model in
order to demonstrate what the owner could have reasonably expected
to occur if things had remained unchanged. (R:655). This was a
standard technique used for both business valuation and for
assessing damages to a business. (R:650-652). This model was
reflected on Defendant’s Exhibit 13. (R:652).

After testifying to the analysis that went into the
preparation of the business model (R:656-666), the witness noted
that the business was still growing prior to the road
reconstruction (R:666), and was consistent with the general trends
relating to this type of business. (R:666-667).

Mr. Thompson stated the change in the customers visiting the
site was the key to the decline in sales. (R:674-675). 1In 1989,
the year in which the reconstruction began, the customer count
dropped 58,000 customers compared to 1988. In 1990, when
construction was completed and things were expected to return to
normal, the customer count dropped an additional 19,000 customers.
(R:676) .

With regard to the cause of the customer decline, Thompson
indicted that he looked at all of the factors that would normally
result in a loss of customers. The witness found no significant
change with regard to competition and there was no decline in the

customer base for that area. (R:676). Furthermore, the decline
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could not be tied to a poor economy. (R:677). No change in
management or problems relating thereto were discerned. (R:677-
678). Another store operated by this same owner continued to grow
in customers during this same time period. (R:678-679). An
examination of all the factors that could have affected the
customer count at this location revealed things were as good, and
in some cases better, than the time period prior to the roadway
reconstruction. The only notable change was in the access
configuration at the site after construction was completed.
(R:677).

Regarding the business damages incurred, Thompson testified
that the data examined (after completion of the road) revealed a
loss in sales (relating to fuel, store items, etc.) from which he
determine the net annual loss. (R:688-689). These were damages
suffered as a result of the change in access to the site. (R:689).

With regard to how long the damages were going to continue,
Thompson testified that he found nothing to indicate that the
damages would not continue over the remaining term of the lease.
(R:690). Projecting the loss over the term of the lease, and
reducing that amount to present value, the expert arrived at an
opinion of business damages suffered by the owner. (R:690-692).

The next witness called was the owner, Jimmy Weaver. (R:799).
Mr. Weaver testified that he and his father started Weaver O0il
Company in 1964. (R:800). When self-serve gasoline stations became
legal he entered into an agreement with a friend who owned a chain

of convenience stores with the idea of selling gasoline at these
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stores. At that time such stores did not exist. (R:802-803). He
and his partner pioneered this new concept, establishing 80 such
stores in a five state area. (R:803).

Weaver 0il Co. currently has six locations, including the site
on the corner of Tennessee Street and Ocala Road. (R:810-811). The
witness stated he played the lead role in converting all of the
Weaver 0Oil sites to include the elements of a convenience store.
(R:812). Over the years he was personally involved in the site
selection for over 100 such stores (R:812-813), as well as the
remodeling of sites and building the stores from the ground up.
(R:813).

With regard to the records of customers visiting the site, Mr.
Weaver testified that the information was gathered from cash
register receipts which indicated each time a customer made a
purchase. At the end of each shift the register tape data was
broken down into several categqgories of information for their
financial statements. (R:829-830). At the end of the day all of
the data was sent to the accounting office to verify the
information. (R:830-831). The accountant then put the data into
the computer, and these records served as the basis for the
information used during the trial. (R:831-832).

After Mr. Weaver became aware of the planned reconstruction of
the roadway, he took steps to minimize his losses during the
construction, including running specials to draw in customers,
closing down the car wash and closing the store deli. (R:835-837).

When the construction was completed he again took steps to restore

17

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