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

"Tlhe little strip along here is one taking, and the denial
of the use of that little strip that they took, that isn't the

problem, the physical taking." (R. 1245, L. 21). (Emphasis
added) .
"In fact, we didn't even own it." (Referring to access.) (R.

1246, L. 9).
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"They physically took that strip, but that didn't cause us a
problem." (Statement during closing argument.) (R. 1248, L. 2).

(Emphasis added).

Numerous statements in opening argument. (R. 394-400).

Statements throughout closing argument and rebuttal. (R.
1237-1282; 1298~-1307).

In its case~in-chief, the petitioner presented no testimony or
evidence, and the record is entirely devoid of any testimony or
evidence, contending or showing that probable business damages
allegedly suffered by Weaver 0il were a result of the denial of use
of the property taken, parcel 142. Mr. Jimmy Weaver, who stated he
was a "hands on" owner of the business, and who was qualified as an
expert (R. 814), testified that the causation of the alleged
business damages was the narrowing of the westerly Tennessee Street
entrance, the so-called main entrance. (R. 885, L. 11; 890, L.
17). Mr. Scott Williams, the petitioner's marketing expert,
testified that the narrowing of the westerly Tennessee Street
entrance was the sole cause of Weaver O0Oil's alleged business
damages. (R. 585, L. 16). Mr. James B. Davis, Jr., another expert
for the petitioner, testified that the narrowing of the westerly
Tennessee Street entrance was the only source of damage to Weaver
0il which he identified. (R. 522, L. 20; 535, L. 17).

Thereafter, the City of Tallahassee in its case~in-chief
presented testimony that the construction complained of by the
petitioner was not located on parcel 142, but rather on existing

public right-of-way. The testimony of Bob Dunlop, a professional

12




engineer and expert witness, was that the right-of-way line was not
changed and that the traffic island was on existing state right-of-
way. (R. 1012, L. 2). Sal Arnaldo, the project engineer for the
city of Tallahassee, testified that the objected to improvements
were constructed on public right-of-way. (R. 1048, L. 14).

It is clear that the petitioner at trial and in the lower
appellate proceedings never asserted business damages were caused
by the loss of use of the property described in the petition and
acquired by the City. Moreover, the City affirmatively proved that
the construction which had the consequential effect of narrowing
one of the Tennessee Street entrances was not performed on the
property condemned (parcel 142), but rather on public right-of-way.

Next, in the amended answer brief filed by Weaver 0il, Weaver

0il stated that it believed the proper issue on appeal was whether

"the fact that the impairment of access occurred within the
existing right-of-way [precluded] the finding that the owner has
suffered a compensable loss of access." (Weaver Oil's App.Ct.
Answer Brief, p. 38).

It seems now that the petitioner is attempting to reject the
position to which it clearly subscribed in the two lower courts.
Indeed, as the City pointed out in the proceedings below, "there
has been no testimony and no argument that the business damages
claimed by the petitioner resulted from the loss of use of that
property described in the petition in eminent domain." (City's

App.Ct. Reply Brief, p. 11). (Emphasis in original).
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The petitioner also mischaracterizes the City's position in
the courts below. At one point, the petitioner claims "the only
matter raised by the City before the lower appellate court was,
given the facts of this cause, could the owner base a claim of
business damages upon the taking of the property right of access."
(Petitioner's S.Ct. Brief, p. 20). Elsewhere in its initial brief,
Weaver 0il modifies this statement. (Petitioner's S.Ct. Brief, p.
22).

The City's position has been consistent and is, as excerpted
from its initial brief filed with the First District Court of
Appeal, as follows:

1. Section 73.071(3)(b), Florida Statutes, 1limits the
recovery of business damages to those damages caused by the "denial
of use of the property so taken. . .";

2. Damages for loss of access are limited to severance
damages, i.e., the reduction in value of the property caused by the
loss of access, and the stipulated final judgment entered into by
Weaver 0il and the City of Tallahassee settled such claims; and

3. The use of existing public right-of-way for the
construction or reconstruction of an island to control traffic flow
and provide for public safety does not give the owner a claim for
business damages. (City's App.Ct. Initial Brief, p. 8).

Additionally, the City presented evidence, argued, and Weaver
0il never disputed that the construction of the portion of the
traffic control island at the southeast corner of Tennessee Street

and Ocala Road which incidentally narrowed the westerly Tennessee
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Street entrance was done entirely on existing public right-of-way.
Weaver 0il never alleged that the claimed loss of access from this
westerly Tennessee Street entrance resulted from its loss of use of
the property which was acquired through eminent domain (parcel
142). Weaver Oil never alleged that its loss of use of the
property so taken (parcel 142) was the cause of alleged business
damages, but instead, Weaver 0il claimed the sole cause of business
damages was the loss of access from the westerly Tennessee Street
entrance.

Alleged damages resulting from the construction of the traffic
control island are not recoverable because the construction which
had the effect of narrowing the subject driveway was not done on
property acquired by eminent domain, but rather on existing public

right-of-way.

II. ISSUE BEFORE THE COURT.

The following question was certified:

DOES SECTION 73.071, FLORIDA STATUTES, PERMIT
A CLAIM FOR STATUTORY BUSINESS DAMAGES FOR AN
ALLEGED SUBSTANTIAL IMPAIRMENT OF ACCESS
RESULTING FROM GOVERNMENTAL CONSTRUCTION ON
EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY ABUTTING THE OWNER'S
PROPERTY, WHERE NO LAND I8 TAKEN?

Initially, the City would point out that this question was not
certified to be one of great public importance as specified in Rule
9.030, Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, and that the appellate
court stated only that "because the disputed language in Tessler is
arguably susceptible to other interpretations" did they certify the

question. Boyd, 616 So.2d at 1004. (Emphasis added).
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Additionally, the petitioner has rejected the certified
question and restated it in two alternatives which it apparently
prefers in light of its changing positions as to the facts.
However, the restatements argued by the petitioner are inconsistent
with the underlying facts as addressed previously herein.

A. ALLEGED BUSINESS DAMAGES MUST BE SHOWN TO RESULT FROM THE

DENIAL OF THE USE OF THAT PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN THE
PETITION IN EMINENT DOMAIN.

The petitioner, contrary to earlier assertions in its brief,
states that the City had primarily two contentions, first that the
city did not specifically condemn any of the owner's access rights
and thus no claim for business damages could be made and second,
that the term "property" as used in Section 73.071(3) (b), Florida
Statutes, is limited to physical property or land but does not
include easements of access. (Petitioner's S.Ct. Brief, p. 72).

The petitioner goes on to state that "the opinion of the lower
court did not turn upon the first aspect of the City's contention"
(i.e., that since the City did not specifically condemn any access
rights in its condemnation petition, no business damages could be
claimed). This statement is at conflict with the opinion itself
wherein the court states:

Appellee's [petitioner] reliance on Glessner
v. Duval County, 203 So.2d 330 (Fla. 1lst DCA
1967) is misplaced because of key factual
differences. In that case, the owner had
acquired a perpetual easement over another
person's lands as part of the purchase of the
adjoining property. The owner's claim for
business damages was based solely on
governmental interference with the owner's
easement of access over another's lands,

thereby cutting off the owner's right of

16




access to the property on which the business

was conducted. The property over which the

easement had been acquired was sgpecifically
identified in the petition. In the instant

case, however, the loss of access and business

damages claimed by Weaver 0il did not result
from the loss of use of the specific property
described in the petition and acgquired_in the
eminent domain proceedings. In fact, the
obstruction that narrowed the driveway was
constructed by the City on existing public
right-of-wvay. Our holding in Glessner was
based squarely on the well-established
principle that the interest in the dominant
tenement in an easement 1is a property
interest. Thus, the governmental interference
with the businessman's property fell within
the plain meaning of Section 73.071(3) (b).
See id., at 332 & 335; Walterg v. State Road
Dept., 239 So.2d 879 (Fla. lst DCA 1970).

616 So.2d at 1004 (emphasis supplied). Clearly, the appellate
court below considered this question. This is the precise issue on
which the City briefed the lower court. This also forms a basis
for the reversal of the trial court and the phraseology of the
certified question. Curiously, the petitioner failed to cite to
this analysis when it asserted that the lower court's decision did
not turn upon this argument. Since this issue was squarely
addressed in the court's opinion and since the claimed loss of
access did not result from the petitioner's loss of use of property
described in the petition in eminent domain (parcel 142), there is
no basis or need to even address what the petitioner has asserted
is the City's second position.

From the time the proceeding commenced at the trial level to
the present, it has consistently and clearly been the City's
position that since the claimed loss of access was not caused by

the petitioner's loss of use of property described in the petition
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in eminent domain, no c¢laim of business damages could be
maintained, and that any claimed restriction of access resulting
from construction done on existing public right-of-way could only
be addressed by a counterclaim or inverse condemnation proceeding
brought by Weaver 0il.

The question certified by the District Court of Appeal
concisely asks for confirmation of the clear requirements for
business damages specified in Section 73.071(2)(b), Florida
Statutes. The language of the statute requires that it be
demonstrated that business damages arise from the loss of use of
the property taken. The property taken, without question, refers
to that property identified in the petition in eminent domain as
required by Section 73.021, Florida Statutes. The statute requires
"3 description identifying the property sought to be acquired."
The statute also requires the petition set forth "the estate or
interest in the property which the petitioner intends to acquire."

Nowhere in this action or in the petition was there any
property identified which was used by Weaver 0il as part of its
westerly Tennessee Street entrance. Nowhere during the course of
this action was there any reference whatsoever to an acquisition of
any right of access relating to the westerly Tennessee Street
entrance. The provisions of Chapter 73, Florida Statutes,
particularly when read together, leave no dispute that all property
or interests in property which are the subject of an eminent domain
action must be specifically identified in the petition. See

Section 73.021(2), (3), Florida Statutes; Florida Power Corp. V.

18




Griffin, 144 So.2d 104 (Fla. 2d DCA 1962); Clark v. Gulf Power Co.,

198 So.2d 368 (Fla. 1st DCA 1967); Walker v. Florida Gas

Transmission Co., 491 So.2d 1286 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986). The trial
court obtains jurisdiction only over the property or estate or

interest identified in the petition. Cf. Chalmers v. Florida Power

and Light Co., 245 So.2d 285 (Fla. 1st DCA 1971) (circuit court
lacks jurisdiction over eminent domain proceedings where the
petition is silent as to the estate or interest to be taken in

landowners' lands.); Gulf Power Co. v. Stack, 296 So.2d 572 (Fla.

1st DCA 1974); Florida Eastcoast R.R. Co. v. City of Miami, 346

So.2d 621 (Fla. 3d DCA 1971) (proceeding was properly dismissed
where resolution failed to set forth the necessity, public purpose,
the estate or interest to be taken and a legal description of the
property); Salfi v. Dept. of Transportation, 312 So.2d 781 (Fla.
4th DCA 1975) (same).

Even if Chapter 73, Florida Statutes, did not contain these
explicit pleading requirements, Florida law is clear that it is
error for a court to grant relief on issues which were not framed
by the pleadings nor tried by consent. Pond v. McKnight, 339 So.2d
1149 (Fla. 2d DCA 1976) (although evidence was sufficient, it was

error to grant injunctive relief); Miceli v. Gilmac Deyv., Inc., 467

So.2d 404 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985) (error to order sale of condominium) ;

Brickell Station Towers, Inc. v. J.D,C. Corp., 549 So.2d 203 (Fla.

3d DCA 1989) (granting relief which was neither requested in
appropriate pleadings, nor tried by consent, violates due process);

Southern Indus. Tire, Inc. v. Chicago Indus. Tire, Inc., 541 So.2d
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790 (Fla. 4th DCA 1989) (error to order a party to furnish an

accounting).

In Dept. of Transportation v. Weggies Banana_Boat, this

precise issue was recognized in Judge Altenbrend's concurring
opinion:

Even if additional damages for loss of land
value might have been available at the time of

trial, Weqgies never asked the trial judge to

declare a taking of access as compared to the
taking of land which was described in DOT's

complaint. Thus, there was no legal predicate
to permit the jury to award additional damages
for a taking of access.

576 So.2d 722, 725-26 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990). (Emphasis supplied).
Therefore, any damages claimed must be based upon the loss of use
of the property which is, in fact, described in the petition in
eminent domain.

This construction is consistent with the Supreme Court's
dictates that business damages should be awarded only when such an
award appears clearly consistent with the legislative intent of the
governing statute and that the interpretation of such statute
should be strictly construed in favor of the state and against the

grantee. Tampa-Hillsborough Expressway Auth. v. K.E. Morris

Alignment Serv., Inc., 444 So.2d 926 (Fla. 1983); Dept. of

Agriculture and Consumer Servs. V. Mid-Florida Growers, Inc., 570

So0.2d 892 (Fla. 1990).

The petitioner did argue at the district court level that the
City consented to the trial of its claim for business damages.
This argument was not accepted by the appellate court and has not

been raised again by the petitioner.
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In this case, the access claimed by the petitioner to have
been taken was never identified or described in the petition in
eminent domain, and it was never asserted as a counterclaim or
otherwise brought as a claim in inverse condemnation. Thus, for
the trial court to assume jurisdiction over claimed property rights
not attributable to the property described in the petition and not
otherwise made a part of this action by counterclaim or other
action was clear error.

"An owner may plead inverse condemnation as a counterclaim in
a direct eminent domain proceeding or to recover compensation for
a taking that is different from, or greater than, the taking
legally authorized and described in the condemnor's petition."

Florida Eminent Domain Practice and Procedure, 4th Edition, Section

13.32, p. 349. The issues which must be determined by the court
are whether there has been a taking, the nature and extent of the
property rights taken, and the date of taking for valuation
purposes. 1d.

Weaver Oil is now suggesting that the claimed loss of access
relating to the westerly Tennessee Street entrance was adequately
raised in its answer and that this "issue was properly tried as
part of the original condemnation action, essentially as a
condemnation counterclaim." (Petitioner's S.cCt. Brief, p. 28).
This assertion is patently absurd and should be rejected out of
hand. Paragraph 6 of the petitioner's answer to the petition
states "that this defendant claims damages for all restrictions of

ingress and egress to and from the remaining leasehold property
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which are occasioned by this taking." (R. 174-179). (Emphasis
supplied). This response by its very terms claims damages for
"restrictions of ingress and egress. . .occasioned by this taking."
"This taking" can refer to nothing other than the property
described in the petition in eminent domain. This response would
also fail to comply with Section 73.071(3) (b), Florida Statutes,
which requires that any person claiming business damages "set
forth. . .the nature and extent of such damages."

At no time did the petitioner ever attempt to file a claim for
damages due to a separate taking of access on Tennessee Street.

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